
  

AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Chesterfield City Hall 
690 Chesterfield Parkway West 

Monday, December 2, 2024 
7PM 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Bob Nation  

 
 

 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mayor Bob Nation   

 
 

 

III. MOMENT OF SILENT PRAYER – Mayor Bob Nation  

 
 
 

IV. ROLL CALL – City Clerk Vickie McGownd  

 

 
 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Mayor Bob Nation  

 

A. City Council Meeting Minutes – November 18, 2024 
 

B. Budget Public Hearing Meeting Minutes – November 18, 2024 

 
C. Executive Session Meeting Minutes – November 18, 2024 

 

VI. INTRODUCTORY REMARKS – Mayor Bob Nation 

  
A. Thursday, December 5, 2024 – Planning & Public Works (5:30pm) 

 
B. Tuesday, December 10, 2024 – Candidate Filing Opens (8am)  

 

C. Monday, December 16, 2024 – Public Health & Safety (4:00pm) 
 

D. Tuesday, December 24, 2024 – City Hall Closed ½ Day – Christmas 
Eve   

 

E. Wednesday, December 25, 2024 – City Hall Closed – Christmas Day 

 



 
 

F. Wednesday, January 1, 2025 – City Hall Closed – New Year’s Day 

 
G. Monday, January 6, 2025 – City Council (7:00pm) 

 

VII. COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS – Mayor Bob Nation 

 
 

VIII. APPOINTMENTS – Mayor Bob Nation 

 

A. Proposed Bill No. 3529 - An ordinance re-appointing Christopher 
Graville as City Attorney for a one-year term. (First and Second 

Reading) 
 

IX. COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

A. Planning and Public Works Committee – Chairperson Dan Hurt, Ward 
III 

 

1. Proposed Bill No. 3526 – Public Street Acceptance – Alexander 
Woods: An ordinance pertaining to the acceptance of a portion of 

Chesterfield Ridge Center Drive in Alexander Woods as a public 
street in the City of Chesterfield.  City Staff estimates that this 
additional 2,400 square yards of pavement on Chesterfield Ridge 

Center Drive will cost the City of Chesterfield approximately $8,400 
annually.  However, in this case the developer also reconstructed 

4,300 square yards of existing City pavement (Nardin Drive) in poor 
condition which saved the City $314,000 in estimated reconstruction 
costs. (Second Reading) Planning & Public Works Committee 

recommends approval.  
 

2. Proposed Bill No. 3527 – P.Z. 08-2024 City of Chesterfield 

(Unified Development Code – Article 4): An amendment to Article 
4 of the Unified Development Code for modification to the City’s Tree 

List. (Second Reading) Planning Commission recommends 
approval. Planning & Public Works Committee recommends 
approval. 

 
3. POWER OF REVIEW – Chesterfield Village Mall: A Site 

Development Concept Plan, Landscape Plan, and Lighting Plan for a 
96-acre tract of land zoned “PC&R” Planned Commercial and 
Residential District located on the south side of Interstate 64, east of 

Chesterfield Parkway. (Voice Vote) Planning & Public Works 
Committee recommends approval with the condition that a 
redesigned staircase be submitted prior to MZA approval.  

 
4. Next Meeting – December 5, 2024 (5:30pm) 

 



B. Finance and Administration Committee – Chairperson Barb 
McGuinness, Ward I 

 

1. Next Meeting – not yet scheduled  
 

C. Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee – Chairperson Gary Budoor, 

Ward IV 
 

1. Next Meeting – not yet scheduled 
 

D. Public Health and Safety Committee – Chairperson Aaron Wahl, Ward 

II 
 

1.  Next Meeting – December 16, 2024 (4:00pm) 

 
X. REPORT FROM CITY ADMINISTRATOR – Mike Geisel 

 
A. Liquor License – The Lumiere of Chesterfield – 16255 Chesterfield 

Parkway West – requested a new liquor license for retail sale of all kinds 
of intoxicating liquor, drinks to be consumed on premise, and Sunday 
sales. There are no known outstanding municipal violations at this 

location. (Voice Vote) 
 

B. Wilson Avenue Right of Way Parcel Nine – Recommendation to 

authorize the City Administrator to issue payment in the amount of 
$33,115 and execute all necessary right of way and easement documents 

associated with Parcel Nine of the Wilson Avenue Project.  This is a 
budgeted purchase within Account 120-079-5261. (Roll Call Vote) 
Department of Public Works recommends approval.   

 
C. Bid Recommendation – Amphitheater Restroom – Recommendation to 

authorize the City Administrator to execute a change order with Aspire 

Construction Services LLC in an amount not to exceed $805,000 for 
construction of restroom at the Chesterfield Amphitheater.  This will 

necessitate a Budget Amendment from Parks Fund – Fund Reserves to 
Account 119-085-5299 (Special Projects). (Roll Call Vote) Department 
of Public Works recommends approval. 

 
 

XI. OTHER LEGISLATION 

 
A. Proposed Bill No. 3524 – An ordinance of the City of Chesterfield, 

Missouri establishing the Downtown Chesterfield Special Business 

District; making certain findings in connection therewith; authorizing 
certain actions by City Officials and Officers; and containing a severability 
clause. (NO ACTION REQUIRED at this meeting; Second Reading held 

until January 2025) 
 



XII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
NOTE: City Council will consider and act upon the matters listed above and such other 
matters as may be presented at the meeting and determined to be appropriate for 
discussion at that time. 
 
Notice is hereby given that the City Council may also hold a closed meeting for the 
purpose of dealing with matters relating to one or more of the following: legal actions, 
causes of action, litigation or privileged communications between the City’s 
representatives and its attorneys (RSMo 610.021(1) 1994; lease, purchase or sale of real 
estate (RSMo 610.021(2) 1994; hiring, firing, disciplining or promoting employees with 
employee groups (RSMo 610.021(3)1994; Preparation, including any discussions or work 
product, on behalf of a public governmental body or its representatives for negotiations 
with employee groups (RSMo 610.021(9) 1994; and/or bidding specification (RSMo 
610.021(11) 1994. 
 
PERSONS REQUIRING AN ACCOMMODATION TO ATTEND AND PARTICIPATE IN 
THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING SHOULD CONTACT CITY CLERK VICKIE 
MCGOWND AT (636)537-6716, AT LEAST TWO (2) WORKDAYS PRIOR TO THE 
MEETING 



AGENDA REVIEW – MONDAY, DECEMBER 2, 2024 – 6:00 PM 
 
An AGENDA REVIEW meeting has been scheduled to start at 6:00 PM, on Monday, 

December 2, 2024. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  



APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

A. City Council Meeting Minutes – November 18, 2024 
 

B. Budget Public Hearing Meeting Minutes – November 18, 2024 
 

C. Executive Session Meeting Minutes – November 18, 2024 

 
 

INTRODUCTORY REMARKS  
  

B. Thursday, December 5, 2024 – Planning & Public Works (5:30pm) 
 

C. Tuesday, December 10, 2024 – Candidate Filing Opens (8am)  
 

D. Monday, December 16, 2024 – Public Health & Safety (4:00pm) 

 
E. Tuesday, December 24, 2024 – City Hall Closed ½ Day – Christmas Eve   

 
F. Wednesday, December 25, 2024 – City Hall Closed – Christmas Day 

 

G. Wednesday, January 1, 2025 – City Hall Closed – New Year’s Day 
 

H. Monday, January 6, 2025 – City Council (7:00pm) 

 

COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS  
 

 
APPOINTMENTS  
 

A. Proposed Bill No. 3529 - An ordinance re-appointing Christopher Graville as

City Attorney for a one-year term. (First and Second Reading) Per ordi-
nance 3122, City Attorney Graville’s term expires not later than
December 7th, 2024.  Mayor Nation has offered the re-appointment of Mr.
Graville for an additional one-year term.  Given the time constraints and
term expiration, both readings of bill #3529 are requested.



 1 

 
 

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDING 

 

 

 MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 

 AT 690 CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY WEST 

 

NOVEMBER 18, 2024 

 
 

 

The meeting was called to order at 7 p.m. 

 

Mayor Bob Nation led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance and followed with a moment 

of silent prayer.  

 

A roll call was taken with the following results: 

 

PRESENT ABSENT 

 

Mayor Bob Nation  

Councilmember Mary Monachella 

Councilmember Barbara McGuinness 

Councilmember Aaron Wahl 

Councilmember Mary Ann Mastorakos 

Councilmember Dan Hurt 

Councilmember Michael Moore 

Councilmember Merrell Hansen 

Councilmember Gary Budoor 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The minutes of the October 21, 2024 City Council meeting were submitted for approval. 

Councilmember Moore made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Hurt, to approve 

the October 21, 2024 City Council minutes.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous 

affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 



 2 

 

The minutes of the October 21, 2024 Executive Session were submitted for approval. 

Councilmember Hansen made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Moore, to approve 

the October 21, 2024 Executive Session minutes.  A voice vote was taken with a 

unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS 

 

Mayor Nation presented a proclamation to Everett Jennings, 222 Riverbend Drive, in 

recognition of earning the rank of Eagle Scout. 

 

Mr. Gary Wiegert, 1324 Babler Park Road, encouraged fiscal responsibility and spoke 

against tax increases. 

 

Ms. Joi Goodbread, 1705 Ridgemont Court, expressed concerns that after recent heavy 

rain and flooding, the gate at River Valley Drive was not open right away. 

 

INTRODUCTORY REMARKS 

 

Mayor Nation announced that the next meeting of City Council is scheduled for Monday, 

December 2, at 7 p.m. 

 

APPOINTMENTS 

 

Mayor Nation nominated Mr. Matt Adams for re-appointment to the Architectural 

Review Board.  Councilmember Moore made a motion, seconded by Councilmember 

Hansen, to re-appoint Mr. Matt Adams to the Architectural Review Board for a term of 

two years.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result and the motion 

was declared passed. 

 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ASSOCIATED LEGISLATION 

 

Planning & Public Works Committee 

 

Bill No. 3526 Pertains to the acceptance of a portion of Chesterfield Ridge Center 

Drive in Alexander Woods as a public street in the City of 

Chesterfield  (First Reading)  Planning & Public Works 

Committee recommends approval 

 

Councilmember Dan Hurt, Chairperson of the Planning & Public Works Committee, 

made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Mastorakos, for the first reading of Bill No. 

3526.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result and the motion was 

declared passed.  Bill No. 3526 was read for the first time. 

 



 3 

Bill No. 3527 Amends Article 4 of the Unified Development Code for 

modification to the City’s Tree List  (First Reading)  Planning 

Commission recommends approval.  Planning & Public Works 

Committee recommends approval 

 

Councilmember Hurt made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Hansen, for the first 

reading of Bill No. 3527.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result 

and the motion was declared passed.  Bill No. 3527 was read for the first time. 

 

Councilmember Hurt announced that the next meeting of this Committee is scheduled for 

Thursday, November 21, at 5:30 p.m., as a committee of the whole. 

 

Finance & Administration Committee 

 

Councilmember Barbara McGuinness, Chairperson of the Finance & Administration 

Committee, made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Moore, to approve a proposed 

resolution adopting the budget for the City of Chesterfield for the year beginning on 

January 1, 2025 and ending on December 31, 2025, as unanimously recommended by the 

Finance and Administration Committee of the Whole.  A roll call vote was taken with the 

following results:  Ayes – Budoor, Wahl, McGuinness, Mastorakos, Hurt, Monachella, 

Moore and Hansen.  Nays – None.  Mayor Nation declared the motion passed.  The 

successful resolution became Chesterfield Resolution No. 502. 

 

Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee 

 

Councilmember Hurt made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Gary Budoor, 

Chairperson of the Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee, to grant member emeritus status 

for former Councilmember Alan Politte on the Parks, Recreation and Arts Citizens 

Advisory Committee.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result and 

the motion was declared passed. 

 

Councilmember Budoor made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Monachella, to 

increase the annual dog park membership fee by five dollars per dog, beginning the 2025 

fiscal year.  A roll call vote was taken with the following results:  Ayes – McGuinness, 

Mastorakos, Moore, Budoor, Hurt, Hansen and Monachella.  Nays – Wahl.  Mayor 

Nation declared the motion passed. 

 

Councilmember Budoor made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Hurt, to approve 

the Alternative Forestry Management Program, authorize a three-year contract with 

Native Landscape Solutions in an amount not to exceed $51,697 and authorize a 2025 

budget transfer of $61,697 from the Parks Fund Fund Reserves, as unanimously 

recommended by the Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee.  A roll call vote was taken 

with the following results:  Ayes – McGuinness, Monachella, Hurt, Mastorakos, Wahl, 

Moore, Hansen and Budoor.  Nays – None.  Mayor Nation declared the motion passed. 

 



 4 

Public Health & Safety Committee 

 

Councilmember Aaron Wahl, Chairperson of the Public Health & Safety Committee, 

indicated that there were no action items scheduled on the agenda for this meeting. 

 

REPORT FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

 

City Administrator Mike Geisel reported that the City was awarded a $575,000 

Municipal Parks Grant for replacement of the Central Park playground, as previously 

authorized by City Council.  Councilmember  Moore made a motion, seconded by 

Councilmember Mastorakos, to authorize the City Administrator to execute the 

Municipal Parks Grant Acceptance Agreement, authorize the City Administrator to 

execute a contract with Play and Park Structures in an amount not to exceed $1,450,000 

and authorize a 2025 budget transfer of $1,450,000 from Parks Fund Fund Reserves, of 

which $575,000 is to be reimbursed by grant funds.  A roll call vote was taken with the 

following results:  Ayes – Wahl, McGuinness, Mastorakos, Budoor, Hurt, Hansen, 

Monachella and Moore.  Nays – None.  Mayor Nation declared the motion passed. 

 

Mr. Geisel reported that Sushi Boat, located at 84 Clarkson Wilson, has requested a new 

liquor license for retail sale of all kinds of intoxicating liquor, drinks to be consumed on 

premise and Sunday sales.  Mr. Geisel reported that, per City policy, this application has 

been reviewed and is now recommended for approval by both the Police Department and 

Planning & Development Services.  Councilmember Hansen made a motion, seconded by 

Councilmember Budoor, to approve issuance of a new liquor license to Sushi Boat.  A 

voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared 

passed. 

 

Councilmember Moore made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Budoor, to 

authorize City staff to order four park maintenance vehicles that are included in the 2025 

budget, during fiscal year 2024 due to procurement cut-off dates, and to authorize the 

appropriate accounting transactions associated therewith.  A roll call vote was taken with 

the following results:  Ayes – Monachella, Budoor, Hansen, Wahl, Mastorakos, Hurt, 

Moore and McGuinness.  Nays – None.  Mayor Nation declared the motion passed. 

 

Mr. Geisel reported that Staff is recommending award of a contract for the construction 

of sanitary sewer improvements on North Outer Forty, funded by state grant funds and a 

partnership with Gateway Studios.  Councilmember Hurt made a motion, seconded by 

Councilmember Wahl, to accept the low bid as submitted by Kelpe Contracting and to 

authorize the City Administrator to enter into an agreement with Kelpe Contracting in an 

amount not to exceed $4,834,000 for construction of sanitary sewer improvements on 

North Outer Forty as previously contemplated with a cooperation agreement with 

Gateway Studios and partially funded with state of Missouri grant funds, authorize an 

agreement with HR Green in an amount not to exceed $115,000 for construction 

engineering and to authorize the associated budget amendments.  A roll call vote was 

taken with the following results:  Ayes – Moore, Mastorakos, Wahl, Hurt, McGuinness, 



 5 

Budoor, Monachella and Hansen.  Nays – None.  Mayor Nation declared the motion 

passed. 

 

OTHER LEGISLATION 

 

Bill No. 3528 Provides for the approval of a Boundary Adjustment Plat for Lots 

16A and 17A of Schaeffer’s Grove Subdivision Plat 1  (First and 

Second Readings)  Department of Planning recommends 

approval 

 

Councilmember Hansen made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Budoor, for the 

first and second readings of Bill No. 3528.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous 

affirmative result and the motion was declared passed.  Bill No. 3528 was read for the 

first and second time.  A roll call vote was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 

3528 with the following results:  Ayes – Hurt, Wahl, Mastorakos, Budoor, Hansen, 

Monachella, Moore and McGuinness.  Nays – None.  Whereupon Mayor Nation declared 

Bill No. 3528 approved, passed it and it became ORDINANCE NO. 3315. 

 

Bill No. 3524 Establishes the Downtown Chesterfield Special Business District; 

making certain findings in connection therewith; authorizing certain 

actions by City Officials and Officers; and containing a severability 

clause  (Second Reading held until January 2025) 

 

City Administrator Geisel indicated that no action is required pertaining to Bill No. 3524 

at this meeting.  The second reading is scheduled for January 2025 due to statutory 

requirements. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

There was no unfinished business scheduled on the agenda for this meeting. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

There was no new business. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Nation adjourned the meeting at 7:54 

p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 6 

 

 

          

Mayor Bob Nation 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________________  

Vickie McGownd, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED BY CITY COUNCIL:  __________________ 

 



 1 

 
 

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDING 

 

 __________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                   

 

 PUBLIC HEARING OF THE CITY COUNCIL  

 OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD  

 690 CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY WEST 

  

NOVEMBER 18, 2024 
________________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                          

 

Mayor Nation called the Public Hearing to order at 6:47 p.m.  Councilmembers 

Monachella, McGuinness, Wahl, Mastorakos, Hurt, Moore, Hansen and Budoor were in 

attendance, along with approximately ten visitors/members of the Press. 

 

Section 3 of Ordinance No. 10 requires the City Administrator to prepare and submit a 

budget for City Council to consider/adopt, prior to January 1 of each year.  Section 4 of 

Ordinance No. 10 requires that a Public Hearing be held, prior to the adoption of the 

budget.  This budget presentation satisfies all requirements of Ordinance No. 10. 

 

Mayor Nation recognized Finance Director Jeannette Kelly who noted that the budget has 

been created around the City’s Mission Statement.  Ms. Kelly continued by summarizing 

the budget process.  The initial budget was submitted to Council and one budget 

workshop followed on October 1.  Ms. Kelly stated that the proposed FY2025 budget 

provides for $1,820,234 net revenues over expenditures for the four major funds 

(presentation attached).  It was also noted that as of December 31, 2024 a total of 

approximately $10 million has been set aside in debt service accounts for future debt 

payments. 

 

Parks Sales Tax Fund 

 

Ms. Kelly stated that the passage of Proposition” P”, in November 2004, resulted in the 

creation of a Parks Sales Tax Fund, which funds all parks and recreation activities.  The 

Parks Fund is supported by a ½ cent sales tax and, unlike the General Fund Sales Tax and 

the Capital Improvement Sales Tax, the City receives 100% of the revenue from this tax.  

The Parks Sales Tax Fund pays for things such as the Athletic Complex, Central Park, 

Family Aquatic Center and Eberwein Dog Park.  It also pays for a number of other things 



 2 

such as right-of-way landscaping maintenance as well as maintenance of various pocket 

parks and repair or replacement of City limit signs as needed. 

 

In FY2025 the prepaid debt reserve will fund the last two years of debt service for 2026 

and 2027 as the City anticipates exercising first call options for all bond issuances; 

therefore, the City will pay off the debt two years early in 2027. 

 

Ms. Kelly reported that revenues in the Parks Sales Tax Fund are budgeted at $8.16 

million in FY2025 compared to $7.85 million in FY2024.  Total proposed expenditures 

for FY2025 are $24,280 greater than the FY2024 adopted budget. 

 

Total revenue (including sales tax revenue) in the Parks Sales Tax Fund is projected to 

generate approximately $9,995,965 during FY2025.  Expenditures and transfers out are 

projected to total $8,118,903 and $1,130,657, respectively.  The Parks Sales Tax Fund – 

Fund Reserves are expected to end the year at $5,564,484 during FY2025. 

 

Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund 

 

The Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund is self-sufficient since it is funded from the ½ 

cent sales tax, approved in 1996, as Propositions “R” and “S.” Ms. Kelly stated that the 

City only receives 85% of the total money it gets from the ½ cent sales tax, due to a 

statutory requirement that the City share 15% of the total with the St. Louis County sales 

tax pool.  In conjunction with a $30 million bond issue approved by the voters in 1996 for 

improvements to public rights-of-way, voters also approved a ½ cent sales tax for capital 

improvements. 

 

Ms. Kelly reported that sales tax revenues in the Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund 

are projected to total approximately $6,936,000 in FY2025, up about 4 percent from the 

FY2024 adopted budget.  Proposed expenditures for FY2025 are $8,129,255 for capital 

projects and improvements, resulting in a $674,305 reduction to the fund balance. 

 

As a reminder, the City does not generally intend to carry a fund balance in the Capital 

Improvements Fund; however, the timing of projects will affect this.  The FY2025 fund 

balance is projected to be $1,195,491. 

 

Public Safety Fund 

 

Ms. Kelly reported that the Public Safety budgeted expenditures for FY2025 are 

$13,633,208.  This FY2025 proposed budget includes the compensation step increases for 

the Fraternal Order of Police (FOP), per the contract, and a 4 percent merit increase for 

non-FOP employees. 

 

Ms. Kelly explained that the Public Safety Fund was created in FY2018, and the FY2025 

budget will accomplish the same goals.  The Public Safety Fund acts as a net zero fund 



 3 

balance budget where the General Fund funds nearly $9.1 million of the public safety 

operations. 

 

General Fund 

 

The two major sources of General Fund revenues are sales taxes and utility taxes, which 

represent $9,129,000 and $7,293,000 respectively.  Intergovernmental revenues, 

including motor fuel taxes, motor vehicle sales taxes, cigarette taxes, road and bridge 

taxes, and other grant sources represent $4,894,500.  The remaining revenues consist of 

licenses and permits ($1,181,000), charges for services ($136,318), court receipts 

($799,300) and other miscellaneous sources ($600,539). 

 

A portion of the additional land acquired in 2020 adjacent to Central Park is also funded 

by General Fund.  As mentioned earlier, City Council has earmarked funds to prepay debt 

service.  The prepaid debt reserve will fund the last two years of debt service for 2026 

and 2027 as the City anticipates exercising first call options for all bond issuances; 

therefore, the City will pay off the debt two years early in 2027. 

 

Ms. Kelly reported that General Fund revenues are projected to total $24,033,657 in 

FY2025.  This is an increase of approximately $601,000 from the FY2024 budget.  Total 

proposed expenditures and transfers for FY2025 are $22,719,788. 

 

Ms. Kelly stated that the City maintains General Fund – Fund Reserves of over 40% of 

the City’s operating budget.  The General Fund – Fund Reserve balance is projected to 

total $17,425,495 at the end of FY2025 and, when factoring in the amount required to be 

set-aside due to the City’s “40%” policy, leaves $8,337,580 available over and above the 

40% fund reserve policy to fund additional projects, as reviewed/approved by City 

Council, during FY2025 and beyond. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no public discussion or comment, Mayor Nation adjourned the meeting at 

6:59 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

        

Mayor Bob Nation 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Vickie McGownd, City Clerk 



BILL NO.                          ORDINANCE NO. __________ 

 
AN ORDINANCE RE-APPOINTING CHRISTOPHER GRAVILLE AS 

CITY ATTORNEY FOR A ONE-YEAR TERM 
 

WHEREAS, City Attorney Christopher Graville was appointed as the City’s 
Interim City Attorney by Resolution 423 on April 20th, 2016 to serve at the 
pleasure of the Mayor and City Council until an attorney was named to represent 

the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, Christopher Graville was appointed as the City’s City Attorney 
by Ordinance 2928 on December 5th, 2016 to serve at the pleasure of the Mayor 
and City Council for a term designated to expire not later than December 6th, 

2020; and 
 

WHEREAS, Christopher Graville was re-appointed as the City’s City 

Attorney by Ordinance 3122 on December 7th, 2020 to serve at the pleasure of 
the Mayor and City Council for a term designated to expire not later than 

December 6th, 2024; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Mayor has nominated Christopher Graville for re-

appointment as the City Attorney, to serve at the pleasure of the Mayor and City 
Council for an additional one-year term expiring not later than December  8th, 
2025 pursuant to the power and authority vested in the Mayor to appoint 

positions granted to him pursuant to Section 77.330 R.S.Mo, and pursuant to 
Chesterfield City Code section 120.160 and Section 77.370 R.S.Mo.; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. Christopher Graville shall assume the position of City 

Attorney, to serve at the pleasure of the Mayor and City Council.  Said 
appointment shall become effective immediately and the term of appointment 
shall terminate not later than December 8th, 2025. 

 
Section 2. Terms and conditions of Mr. Graville’s appointment are 

unchanged from the “Agreement” incorporated into Ordinance 2928.  

 
Section 3. The Mayor is authorized to execute the Agreement.   

 
Section 4. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after 

its passage and approval as provided by law. 

 
 

 

3529



PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 2nd DAY OF DECEMBER, 2024. 
  

 
_________________________________  _________________________________ 

PRESIDING OFFICER    MAYOR – BOB NATION 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 
_________________________________ 

 VICKIE MCGOWND, CITY CLERK       First Reading Held:  ________________ 





PLANNING AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
Chair:  Councilmember Dan Hurt 

Vice Chair: Councilmember Mary Monachella 

 
1. Proposed Bill No. 3526 – Public Street Acceptance – Alexander 

Woods: An ordinance pertaining to the acceptance of a portion of 
Chesterfield Ridge Center Drive in Alexander Woods as a public street in 
the City of Chesterfield.  City Staff estimates that this additional 2,400 

square yards of pavement on Chesterfield Ridge Center Drive will cost 
the City of Chesterfield approximately $8,400 annually.  However, in this 
case the developer also reconstructed 4,300 square yards of existing City 

pavement (Nardin Drive) in poor condition which saved the City 
$314,000 in estimated reconstruction costs. (Second Reading) Planning 

& Public Works Committee recommends approval.  
 

2. Proposed Bill No. 3527 – P.Z. 08-2024 City of Chesterfield (Unified 

Development Code – Article 4): An amendment to Article 4 of the 
Unified Development Code for modification to the City’s Tree List. 

(Second Reading) Planning Commission recommends approval. 
Planning & Public Works Committee recommends approval. 

 

3. POWER OF REVIEW – Chesterfield Village Mall: A Site Development 
Concept Plan, Landscape Plan, and Lighting Plan for a 96-acre tract of 
land zoned “PC&R” Planned Commercial and Residential District located 

on the south side of Interstate 64, east of Chesterfield Parkway. (Voice 
Vote) Planning & Public Works Committee recommends approval 

with the condition that a redesigned staircase be submitted prior to 
MZA approval.  

 

4. Next Meeting – December 5, 2024 (5:30pm) 
 

 

NEXT MEETING 

 
The next Planning and Public Works Committee is scheduled for Thursday, 
December 5, 2024, at 5:30pm. 

 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Director 
of Planning - Justin Wyse, Director of Public Works – Jim Eckrich, or me prior to 

Monday’s meeting.   



 

1 | P a g e  

 

Memorandum 
Department of Public Works 
 

TO:  Michael O. Geisel, PE 
  City Administrator 
 

cc:  James A. Eckrich, PE 
Director of Public Works / City Engineer 

 

Justin Wyse, AICP, PTP 
Director of Planning 
 

Zachary S. Wolff, PE 
Assistant City Engineer 

 

FROM: Jeff Paskiewicz, PE 

Senior Civil Engineer 
 

DATE: October 21, 2024 
  

RE:  Public Street Acceptance  
Alexander Woods 

 

 
Public Works staff recently conducted an inspection of the Alexander Woods subdivision.  As 
part of the inspection, we have determined that the following street meets the City of 
Chesterfield’s design and construction standards for acceptance as a public street:   
 

(1) Chesterfield Ridge Center Drive Approximately 830 feet; from Intersection 
of Nardin Drive to the eastern limit of the 
Chesterfield Ridge Center Drive bridge 
Book 368, Page 1-3; Book 23496, Page 2984; 
Book 23486, Page 1674 

 
A draft ordinance and a map showing the location of the above referenced street and the 
associated record plat exhibit are attached.  The street area to be accepted is approximately 
2,398 square yards of concrete pavement.  The remaining section of Chesterfield Ridge Center 
Drive was previously accepted as a public street by way of ordinance 3038 
 
Nardin Drive is located in the Alexander Woods subdivision and was reconstructed to City 
standards as part of the subdivision construction.  The Nardin Drive right-of-way was existing 
and no new right-of-way was necessary.  A small portion of right-of-way, which covered the 
previous roundabout on Nardin Drive, was vacated as indicated on the attached record plat.      
 
Action Recommended 
 
I recommend forwarding the acceptance of the above-referenced street and associated 
sidewalks to the Planning and Public Works Committee for its consideration. If the Planning 
and Public Works Committee recommends approval, the matter should be forwarded to City 
Council for consideration.   
 

 



BILL NO. ____________________ 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________________ 

AN ORDINANCE PERTAINING TO THE ACCEPTANCE OF A PORTION OF 

CHESTERFIELD RIDGE CENTER DRIVE IN ALEXANDER WOODS AS A PUBLIC 

STREET IN THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Chesterfield has approved the construction of Alexander Woods; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the street in Alexander Woods was intended to be a public street and was 

therefore constructed to the design standards of the Department of Public Works of the City of 

Chesterfield. 

 

WHEREAS, Payne Family Homes has completed required street improvements in 

Alexander Woods. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CHESTERFIELD, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  The following street is hereby accepted by the City of Chesterfield for future care and 

maintenance: 

 

(1) Chesterfield Ridge Center Drive:  Approximately 830 feet; from Intersection 

of Nardin Drive to the eastern limit of the 

Chesterfield Ridge Center Drive bridge  

Book 368, Page 1-3; Book 23496, Page 

2984, Book 23486, Page 1674 

 

 

Section 2.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 

 

Passed and approved this _________ day of __________________, 2024. 

 

 

 

__________________________________  ________________________________ 

PRESIDING OFFICER    Bob Nation, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Vickie McGownd, CITY CLERK 

 

 

 

FIRST READING HELD: 
____________________ 

3526



Chesterfield Ridge Center Drive

Esri., Inc., City of Chesterfield, Missouri

Preliminary Parcels

Parcels

10/18/2024, 2:10:12 PM

0 0.07 0.150.04 mi

0 0.1 0.20.05 km

1:4,000

Esri., Inc., City of Chesterfield, Missouri |

Jeff Paskiewicz
Polygon Line



KReiter
Received



KReiter
Received



KReiter
Received



Memorandum
Department of Planning
To: Michael O. Geisel, City Adminstrator

From: Justin Wyse, Director of Planning

Date: November 18th, 2024

RE: P.Z. 08-2024 City of Chesterfield (Unified Development Code – Article 4):
An amendment to Article 4 of the Unified Development Code for
modifications to the City’s Tree List.

Summary
The  Unified Development Code (UDC) contains a table that details the species of trees
that are permitted to be planted within City limits. It also further breaks down which
of the trees may be utilized as street trees or parking lot trees based on a variety of a
species individual characteristics. Landscape plans are reviewed against this table in
addition to the requirements in Section 405.04.020 Tree Preservation and Landscape
Requirements. This table has become outdated in recent years and Chesterfield
Citizens Environmental Advisory Committee has expressed interest in having it
updated.

A Public Hearing was held on October 14th, 2024 and no issues were raised. Planning
Commission voted on the request and a motion to recommend approval passed by a
vote of 7-0.

The petition was review by the Planning & Public Works Committee on November 7th,
2024. The Committee made a motion to forward the petition to City Council with a
recommendation to approve.



BILL NO. ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD AMENDING SECTION
405.04.020 OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE RELATING TO THE
TABLE FOR CITY’S TREE LIST.

WHEREAS, the City of Chesterfield Unified Development Code contains
regulations pertaining to Tree Preservation and Landscape Requirements; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to amend the table for the tree list contained
within these regulations; and

WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was held before the Planning Commission on
October 10, 2024; and,

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommended approval of the
following amendments; and,

WHEREAS, the Planning & Public Works Committee, having considered
said request, recommended approval of the following amendments; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council, having considered said request, voted to
approve the amendments to Section 405.04.020 Tree List of the Unified
Development Code.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

Section I:  The City of Chesterfield hereby approves the updates to Section
405.04.020 Tree List as set out in Attachment “A” which is attached hereto and
made part thereof.

Section II: If any section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of
this Ordinance shall be declared by a court of a competent jurisdiction to be
invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of this Ordinance as whole, or
any part thereof.

Section III: Where this Ordinance differs or conflicts with other laws, rules
or regulations, unless the right to do so is preempted or prohibited by the
County, State, or Federal government, the more restrictive or protective of the
City and the public shall apply.

Section IV: This ordinance shall be codified within the Municipal Code of
the City of Chesterfield.

3527



Section V: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

Passed and approved this day of                                 , 2024.

     PRESIDING OFFICER         Bob Nation, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Vickie McGownd, CITY CLERK

FIRST READING HELD: 11/18/2024



Scientific Name Common Name          Street Tree
Parking Lot Tree    

Island Tree
Deciduous Evergreen Ornamental Mature Height (ft) Growth Rate           Size Class

Abies concolor Fir, White (Concolor) x x 45+ Slow/Med Large

Acer ginnala Maple, Amur x x x  20-25 Med Small

Acer platanoides Maple, Norway x x 45+ Med Large

Acer platanoides 'Columnare' Maple, Norway, Columnar x x 45+ Med Large

Acer rubrum varieties Maple, Red and Varieties                      x x x 45+ Fast Large

Acer saccharinum Maple, Silver x 45+ Fast Large

Acer saccharum varieties Maple, Sugar and Varieties                 x x x 45+ Slow/Med Large

Acer tataricum Maple, Tatarian x x 15-25 Med Small

Acer x freemanii 'Jeffersred' Maple, Hybrid, Autumn Blaze  x x x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Acer x freemanii 'Scarsen' Maple, Scarlet Sentinel x x 45+ Fast Large

Aesculus glabra Buckeye, Ohio x x x 25-35 Slow Medium

Aesculus hippocastanum Horsechestnut x  x  30-45 Med Medium

Aesculus pavia Buckeye, Red x x  x  20-30 Slow Slow

Alnus glutinosa Alder, European x x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Amelanchier arborea Serviceberry, Downy x x x 25-30 Slow/Med Medium

Amelanchier laevis 'Cumulus' Serviceberry, Cumulus       x x x 25-30 Slow/Med Medium

Amelanchier x grandiflora 'Robin Hill' Serviceberry, Robin Hill   x x x 25-30 Slow/Med Medium

Betula nigra 'BNMTF Dura-heat' Dura-heat River Birch x x x 30+ Med Medium

Carpinus betulus Hornbeam, European x x x 35-40 Slow/Med Medium

Carpinus caroliniana Hornbeam, American x x x  x 20-35 Med Small

Carya illinoensis Pecan x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Carya laciniosa Hickory, Shellbark x 45+ Slow/Med Large

Carya ovata Hickory, Shagbark x 45+ Slow Large

Catalpa speciosa Catalpa, Northern x 45+ Fast Large

Celtis laevigata Sugarberry x x 45+ Fast Large

Celtis occidentalis varieties Hackberry and Varieties x  x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Cercidiphyllum japonicum Katsura x x x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Cercis canadensis Redbud, Eastern x x x 25-30 Fast Medium

Chionanthus virginicus Fringetree x x 20-50 Med Small

Cladrastis kentukea Yellowwood x x 30-50 Slow/Med Large

Cornus florida Dogwood, Flowering x x 15-25 Slow/Med Small

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE

405 Attachment 5

City of Chesterfield

Table 5

Tree List

[CC 1990 Ch. 31, Attach 5; Ord No. 2801, §3 (Exh. A), 6-16-2014]

Note: Trees not found on this list may be reviewed/approved on a case by case basis by the Department of Planning.                                                                                                             Page 1 of 3



Scientific Name Common Name          Street Tree
Parking Lot Tree    

Island Tree
Deciduous Evergreen Ornamental Mature Height (ft) Growth Rate   Size Class

Crataegus crus-galli Hawthorn, Cockspur x x x 15-20 Med Small

Crataegus laevigata 'Superba' Hawthorn, Crimson Cloud    x x x x 15-20 Med Small

Crataegus phaenopyrum Hawthorn, Washington x x  x  20-30 Med Small

Crataegus virdis Hawthorn, Green x x 25-30 Med Small

Crataegus virdis Hawthorn, Winter King  x x x 25-30 Med Small

Eucommia ulmoides Rubbertree, Hardy x  x x 45+ Med Large

Fagus grandifolia Beech, American x x 45+ Slow/Med Large

Fagus sylvatica Beech, European x 45+ Slow/Med Large

Ginkgo biloba-Male Ginkgo (male)              x x x 45+ Slow/Med Large

Gleditsia triacanthos inermis -   

thornless, podless varieties 

Honeylocust -                

thornless, podless varieties    
x x x 45+ Fast Large

Gymnocladus dioicus Kentucky Coffeetree  x  x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Halesia carolina Silverbell x x x 20-30 Slow Medium

Ilex decidua Holly, Deciduous x x  x  45+ Slow Large

Ilex opaca Holly, American  x 45+ Slow Large

Juniperus chinensis Juniper, Chinese x x 20-30 Slow/Med Small

Juniperus virginiana varieties Redcedar, Eastern x  x 30-40 Med Medium

Koelreuteria paniculata Golden Rain Tree  x x x 25-40 Med/Fast Medium

Liquidambar styraciflua Sweetgum x 45+ Fast Large

Liriodendron tulipifera Tuliptree x 45+ Fast Large

Magnolia acuminata Cucumber Tree x  x 45+ Slow/Med Large

Magnolia grandiflora Magnolia, Southern x x 45+ Med Large

Magnolia soulangeana Magnolia, Saucer x x x 20-30 Slow/Med Medium

Magnolia virginiana Magnolia, Sweetbay x x x 15-25 Med Small

Metasequoia glyptostroboides Dawn Redwood x x 70-100 Fast Large

Nyssa aquatica Water Tupelo x 50-80 Slow/Med Med/Large

Nyssa sylvatica Blackgum x x x 30-50 Slow Medium

Ostrya virginiana Hop-hornbeam                  x x x 30-40 Slow/Med Medium

Oxydendron arboreum Sourwood (Sorrel Tree)  x x 20-30 Slow/Med Medium

Picea abies Norway Spruce x 40-60 Med/Fast Med/Large

Picea glauca Spruce, White x x x 30-40 Med Medium

Picea pungens Spruce, Colorado Blue x x x 30-40 Med Medium

Pinus densiflora Pine, Japanese Red x x 45+ Med Large

Pinus flexilis Pine, Limber x x 30-40 Med Large

Pinus resinosa Pine, Red  x 45+ Med Large

Pinus strobus Pine, Eastern White x  x 45+ Fast Large

Pinus thunbergiana Pine, Japanese Black x  x 45+ Med Large

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE

Note: Trees not found on this list may be reviewed/approved on a case by case basis by the Department of Planning.                                                                                                                                                                                             Page 2 of 3



Scientific Name Common Name          Street Tree
Parking Lot Tree    

Island Tree
Deciduous Evergreen Ornamental Mature Height (ft) Growth Rate Size Class

Platanus occidentalis Sycamore x 45+ Fast Large

Platanus x acerifolia Planetree, London    x x 45+ Fast Large

Platycladus orientalis Arborvitae, Oriental x x x x  30-40 Slow Medium

Prunus cerasifera Plum, Purple-leaf x x x 15-25 Med Small

Prunus sargentii 'Columnaris' Cherry, Sargent, Columnar x x x 30-40 Med Medium

Prunus serrulata Cherry, Flowering, Japanese x x x 25-35 Med Medium

Quercus acutissima Oak, Sawtooth x  x 45+ Med Large

Quercus alba Oak, White x 45+ Med Large

Quercus bicolor Oak, Swamp White x x 45+ Med Large

Quercus coccinea Oak, Scarlet x  x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Quercus falcata var.pagodafolia Oak, Cherrybark x 45+ Med Large

Quercus imbricaria Oak, Shingle x  x 45+ Med Large

Quercus macrocarpa Oak, Bur x 45+ Slow/Med Large

Quercus michauxii Oak, Swamp Chestnut x x 45+ Med Large

Quercus muehlenbergii Oak, Chinkapin x x 45+ Med Large

Quercus prinus Oak, Chestnut x x 45+ Med Large

Quercus robur Oak, English, x x 45+ Med Large

Quercus rubra Oak, Northern Red x x x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Quercus shumardii Oak, Shumard x x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Quercus stellata Oak, Post x 45+ Slow Large

Quercus velutina Oak, Black x 45+ Med Large

Salix nigra Willow, Black x 30-40 Fast Medium

Sassafras albidum Sassafras x 30-40 Med Medium

Sophora japonica Pagodatree, Japanese x  x  45+ Med Large

Syringa reticulata Lilac, Japanese Tree x x x 25-30 Med Small

Taxodium distichum Bald Cypress x 45+ Med Large

Thuja plicata Arborvitae, Green Giant x 50 Fast Large

Thuja occidentalis Arborvitae, Emerald Green x x 14 Slow Small

Tilia americana American Basswood x x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Tilia cordata varieties Littleleaf Linden   x x 45+ Slow/Med Large

Tsuga canadensis Hemlock, Canadian x  x 45+ Slow/Med Large

Ulmus americana varieties Elm, American and Varieties x x 60-80 Med/Fast Large

Ulmus parvifolia Elm, Chinese or Lacebark x x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Zelkova serrata varieties Zelkova, Japanese x x 45+ Fast Large

Note: Trees not found on this list may be reviewed/approved on a case by case basis by the Department of Planning.                                                                                                                                                                                   

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE

Page 3 of 3



Memorandum
Department of Planning
To: Michael O. Geisel, City Administrator

From: Justin Wyse, Director of Planning

Date: December 2nd, 2024

RE: Chesterfield Village Mall:  A Site Development Concept Plan, Landscape
Plan, and Lighting Plan for a 96-acre tract of land zoned “PC&R” Planned
Commercial and Residential District located on the south side of Interstate
64, east of Chesterfield Parkway. (Ward 2)

Summary
Stock & Associates Consulting Engineers, Inc. in collaboration with Bosk Architects,
on behalf of TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC, have submitted a Site
Development Concept Plan for a site commonly known as the Chesterfield Mall.

Per Site Specific Ordinance 3298, the development has automatic Power of Review in
addition to the requirement for the Site Development Concept Plan to be reviewed by
Architectural Review Board.

The project was reviewed by Architectural Review Board on October 10th, 2024. In
order to keep the infrastructure related plans within the purview of the Board, staff
focused the review on the aesthetics of the proposed street grid and the grand stair
case. It was communicated that future submittals for the public park area, parking
garage, and individual lot developments would also be reviewed by the Board. The
Board made a motion to recommend approval, as presented. The motion passed by a
vote of 5-0.

The project was then reviewed by the Planning Commission on October 28th, 2024.
Following discussion on the proposed parking garage, traffic impact, and the grand
staircase among other items, the Commission made a motion to recommend approval
as presented. The motion passed by a vote of 7-0.

The applicant requested to hold the project at the November 7th, 2024 Planning &
Public Works Committee meeting. The request to hold was approved by the Committee.

The project was review by Planning & Public Works Committee of the Whole on
November 21st, 2024. A motion to recommend approval with the condition that the
developer submit a revised design for the staircase for approval prior to issue of the
first MZA consistent with the topics discussed passed by a vote of 6-0.

https://www.chesterfield.mo.us/webcontent/ordinances/2024/ord3298.pdf
























































































FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

Chair:  Councilmember Barb McGuinness 

Vice-Chair:  Councilmember Michael Moore 
 
There are no Finance and Administration Committee items scheduled for tonight’s 

meeting. 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
The next Finance and Administration Committee is not yet scheduled.  

 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Finance 
Director Jeannette Kelly or me prior to Monday’s meeting.   

 
 

 



PARKS, RECREATION AND ARTS COMMITTEE 
Chair:  Councilmember Budoor 

Vice Chair:  Councilmember Monachella  
 

There are no Parks Recreation and Arts Committee items scheduled for tonight’s 
meeting. 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 

The next meeting of the Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee is not yet scheduled. 
 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact me prior 

to Monday’s meeting. 
 
 



PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 
Chair:  Councilmember Aaron Wahl 

Vice Chair: Councilmember Merrell Hansen  
 

There are no Public Health and Safety Committee items scheduled for tonight’s 
meeting. 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 

The next meeting of the Public Health and Safety Committee is scheduled for 
December 16, 2024 at 4pm.  
 

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Chief 
Cheryl Funkhouser or me prior Monday’s meeting.   
 

 



REPORT FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR & OTHER ITEMS 
REQUIRING ACTION BY CITY COUNCIL 
 

A. Liquor License – The Lumiere of Chesterfield – 16255 Chesterfield 
Parkway West – requested a new liquor license for retail sale of all kinds 

of intoxicating liquor, drinks to be consumed on premise, and Sunday 
sales. There are no known outstanding municipal violations at this 
location. (Voice Vote) 

 
B. Wilson Avenue Right of Way Parcel Nine – Recommendation to 

authorize the City Administrator to issue payment in the amount of 

$33,115 and execute all necessary right of way and easement 
documents associated with Parcel Nine of the Wilson Avenue Project.  

This is a budgeted purchase within Account 120-079-5261. (Roll Call 
Vote) Department of Public Works recommends approval.   

 

C. Bid Recommendation – Amphitheater Restroom – Recommendation 
to authorize the City Administrator to execute a change order with 

Aspire Construction Services LLC in an amount not to exceed $805,000 
for construction of restroom at the Chesterfield Amphitheater.  This will 
necessitate a Budget Amendment from Parks Fund – Fund Reserves to 

Account 119-085-5299 (Special Projects). (Roll Call Vote) Department 
of Public Works recommends approval. 

 

OTHER LEGISLATION 
 

A. Proposed Bill No. 3524 – An ordinance of the City of Chesterfield, 
Missouri establishing the Downtown Chesterfield Special Business 
District; making certain findings in connection therewith; authorizing 

certain actions by City Officials and Officers; and containing a 
severability clause. (NO ACTION REQUIRED at this meeting; Second 

Reading held until January 2025) 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

There is no unfinished business scheduled for this meeting. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
There is no new business scheduled for this meeting 



 

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
DATE:   November 20, 2024 

 

TO:  Mike Geisel 

  City Administrator 

  
FROM:  Denise Pozniak, Business Assistance Coordinator  

 

SUBJECT: LIQUOR LICENSE REQUEST – SHDG Missouri LLC dba The Lumiere of 

Chesterfield 

   

              
The Lumiere of Chesterfield… has requested a new liquor license for retail sale of all kinds of 

intoxicating liquor, drinks to be consumed on premise, and Sunday sales.  

 

Business description: Upscale senior living community 

 

There are no known outstanding municipal violations at this location: 
16255 W Chesterfield Pkwy 

 

Brad Queen is the managing officer. 

 

This application was reviewed and approved by both the Police Department and the Department of 
Planning. 

 

With City Council approval at the Monday December 2, 2024 city council meeting, I will immediately 

issue this license. 

 



1 | P a g e  

 

Memorandum 
Department of Public Works 
 

 

TO:   Michael O. Geisel, P.E. 
   City Administrator 
 
FROM:  James A. Eckrich, P.E. 
   Public Works Dir. / City Engineer  
 
DATE:  November 18, 2024  
  
RE: Wilson Avenue Right of Way Parcel Nine  
 

As you know, the City of Chesterfield has secured a grant to reconstruct the northern 
portion of Wilson Avenue.  Design was completed earlier this year and we are 

currently in the right of way acquisition phase, with construction expected to 
commence in 2026.  While the City must pay all costs associated with project design, 
right of way, and construction engineering, the Surface Transportation Program (STP) 

grant will fund up to $1,143,170 of the estimated $1,633,100 construction cost.  The 
2024 City of Chesterfield Budget includes $310,000 in Account 120-079-5261 for 
Wilson Avenue right of way. 

 
Prior to generating a bid package and advertising for bids, the City must acquire right 

of way, permanent drainage easements, and temporary easement from ten parcels.  
When acquiring right of way, the City must adhere to all requirements of the Uniform 
Act (federal law) and MODOT.  This includes full appraisals, with an appraisal review, 

for any property where the acquisition is complex and/or the value exceeds $25,000.  
Accordingly, we conducted appraisals, including an appraisal review, for six of the 

ten properties prior to commencing property acquisition.      
 
Thus far we have successfully negotiated property acquisition from eight of the ten 

property owners, including Parcel 9, at a total cost of $109,797.  This includes Parcel 
10 which was previously approved by City Council in the amount of $49,984.  The 
other property acquisitions did not require City Council approval as they were below 

the $25,000 threshold.  For additional details regarding the Wilson Avenue property 
acquisitions, see the attached memo from Senior Civil Engineer Jeff Paskiewicz.   

 
Action Recommended 
This matter should be forwarded to City Council for the approval of a budgeted 

expenditure in excess of $25,000.  Should City Council concur with Staff’s 
recommendation, it should authorize the City Administrator to issue payment in the 
amount of $33,115 and execute all necessary right of way and easement documents 

associated with Parcel 9.   



 
  
Memorandum 
Department of Public Works 
 
 

TO:  Jim Eckrich, Director of Public Works/City Engineer  

 
FROM: Jeff Paskiewicz, Senior Civil Engineer 
 
DATE: November 18, 2024 
  
RE:  Wilson Ave Improvement Project (2021-PW-14) 
  Right-of-Way and Easement Compensation 
  Parcel 9 –  16119 Walnut Hill Farm Drive 
 

 
As you are aware, the City will be reconstructing Wilson Avenue from Wild Horse 
Creek Road to Walnut Hill Farm Drive and constructing a new asphalt overlay from 

Walnut Hill Farm Drive to approximately 1,200 feet south to the Wilson Avenue 
culvert.  As part of the project, land acquisition in the form of right-of-way, 

permanent easements, and temporary construction easements will be necessary from 
ten parcels.  Per Missouri Department of Transportation (MoDOT) requirements for 
local public agency land acquisition, six of the parcels require appraisals and review 

appraisals completed by a certified appraiser.  Appraisals and review appraisals were 
completed for these six parcels and compensation amounts have been determined. 

The 2024 budget contains $310,000 for the necessary property acquisition.  The 

anticipated individual compensation amount for four of the ten parcels will be over 
$25,000 each and will require City Council approval.  The anticipated compensation 

for the remaining six parcels will be under $25,000 each.  Those do not require City 
Council approval. 

To date, staff has acquired easements/right-of-way from eight of the ten parcels, 

including parcel 9, at a total cost of $109,797.  One of the parcels already acquired  
was over $25,000 and City Council approved the compensation at the July 15, 2024 

meeting.  The remaining two parcels, parcels 1 and 4, are anticipated to be in excess 
of $25,000 and will also be submitted to City Council for approval at a later date once 
final negotiations have occurred.    

 

 

 



Parcel 9 – 16119 Walnut Hill Farm Drive 
 
 
 

 

2 | P a g e  

 

Staff has successfully negotiated with the owner of parcel 9 and the easement and 

right-of-way  documents were signed on November 14, 2024.  The documents will be 
recorded upon payment to the property owner.  Copies of the signed documents are 

attached and a breakdown of the compensation is detailed below. 

 

Easement Type Area (SF) $/SF Cost 

Temporary 
Construction 

Easement 

8,070 $0.34 

 

$2,744 

Right-of-Way 17,865 $1.70 $30,371 

                 Total:   $33,115 

It is my recommendation that approval for compensation for the temporary 

construction easement and right-of-way associated with Parcel 9, in the amount of 
$33,115, be placed on a City Council agenda for their approval.   

If approved by City Council, payment can be processed from fund 120-079-5261 in 

the amount of $33,115 and made payable to “Donald A. Flower, Trustee”. 

 

Attachment:  Executed Easement Documents 

 

Cc:  Zach Wolff, Assistant City Engineer 

 
 
 

 

 



















1 | P a g e  

 

Memorandum 
Department of Public Works 
 

 
TO:  Michael O. Geisel, P.E. 

City Administrator 
   
FROM: James A. Eckrich, P.E. 
  Public Works Director / City Engineer 
 
DATE: November 20, 2024 
  
RE:  Amphitheater Restroom 
 

 

On August 19, 2024 the City of Chesterfield City Council authorized a contract with 
Aspire Construction services in an amount not to exceed $2,400,000 to construct 
Back of House improvements to the Chesterfield Amphitheater.  As you will recall, 

the design of this project also included construction of new restroom near the south 
entrance to the Amphitheater, but that portion of the project was subsequently 

removed (by City Staff) from construction due to budgetary concerns.   When Council 
approved the construction contract with Aspire they also indicated a willingness to 
fund the restroom portion of the project with Parks Fund – Fund Reserves and 

directed Staff to determine whether the restroom could be added to this construction 
project.   

 
Construction of the Back of House improvements is underway, and the project is 
proceeding appropriately.  Concurrent with the commencement of construction, City 

Staff has been working with Bond Architects to finalize the 
design/specifications/estimate of the restroom, including review by utility companies 
and St. Louis County.  The design is now complete and we expect to have all utility 

reviews / permits by the end of the year.   
 

Aspire has indicated that - assuming permits are obtained as expected and there are 
no unanticipated events outside their control – they can construct the restroom 
concurrent with the Back of House project and meet the June 2, 2025 construction 

deadline. Accordingly, the City Staff requested a proposal from Aspire to construct 
the restroom concurrent with Back of House improvements, which was received by 

the City on November 15, 2024.  That proposal, which included a cost of $734,019 
(below the Bond estimate), was thoroughly reviewed by the City Staff and Bond 
Architects.  Aspire has stated that they can only provide costs this low because they 

have already mobilized and have existing equipment and supervision on site.  They 
opine that if construction of the restroom was postponed to a future off-season the 
costs submitted by Aspire and other contractors would likely be significantly higher.   



2 | P a g e  

 

 
After reviewing the proposal from Aspire and consulting with the project Architect, it 

is my recommendation that the City pursue construction of the restroom at 
this time.  This will necessitate approval of a change order with Aspire in an 

amount not to exceed $805,000.  This includes the cost from Aspire and a ten 
percent contingency.  Details on the proposed change order are provided in the 
attached memorandum from Civil Engineer Anjana Kittu.  If this project is approved 

by City Council, we will immediately execute a change order with Aspire, and they 
will begin construction of the restroom in early 2025, with an estimated completion 
date of June 2, 2025.   

 
Please note that prior to issuance of the change order, the City will need to 

execute a 2024 Budget Adjustment to allocate $805,000 from Parks Fund –
Fund Reserves to Account 119-085-5299 (Special Projects).  Should you have 
questions or need additional information on this matter, please contact me.

 
 

Action Recommended 
 
This matter should be forwarded to the City Council for consideration.  Should 

Council concur with Staff’s recommendation it should authorize the City
Administrator to execute a change order with Aspire Construction Services LLC in an 
amount not to exceed $805,000 for construction of an additional restroom at the 

Chesterfield Amphitheater.  It should also authorize the City Administrator to execute 
a 2024 Budget Adjustment allocating $805,0000 from Parks Fund – Fund Reserves 

to Account 119-085-5299 (Special Projects).
 
 

 
  Concurrence: ____________________________________ 
     Jeannette Kelly, Director of Finance                  

 



 

1 | P a g e  

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

Memorandum 
 

TO:   James A. Eckrich, PE - Director of Public Works /City 
Engineer 

 
FROM: Anjana Kittu, PE - Civil Engineer 
 
DATE: November 20, 2024 
  
RE: Amphitheater Restroom Building Addition Change Order, 

2023-PW-15 
 

 
As you know, on October 24, 2023, City Council authorized a contract with Bond 

Architects (Bond) in an amount not to exceed $265,000 for architectural and 
engineering design services related to construction of a restroom facility and back-of-
house improvements at the Chesterfield Amphitheater.  Based on the cost estimate 

provided by Bond on May 30, the scope of the construction project was adjusted to 
focus solely on back-of-house improvements, including a new building addition located 

just south of the Amphitheater stage. The restroom addition was deferred to become a 
separate future project. 
 

At the City Council meeting on August 19, Council authorized an agreement with 
Aspire Construction, LLC (Aspire) in an amount not to exceed  $2,400,000 for the back-

of-house addition and a south canopy. At the meeting, City Council expressed interest 
in also moving forward with construction of the restroom as part of the project with 
Aspire.  Subsequently, Staff met with Bond to review the project schedule to ensure all 

work can be completed prior to the 2025 Amphitheater season. From there, Bond 
finalized plans and specifications for the restroom, and submitted for permit approval 
from St. Louis County, MSD, and the Monarch Fire Protection District. Staff anticipates 

that all permits for the restroom will be issued by the end of the year.  
 

Once plans for the restroom were substantially completed, Staff met with Aspire on 
November 5, 2024 to discuss the viability of adding the construction of the restroom 



 

2 | P a g e  

 

to the current project and verify that construction of the restroom could indeed be 
completed within the current project schedule.  Aspire indicated that, assuming there 

are no delays outside their control, they can substantially complete construction of the 
restroom by the original project completion date of June 2, 2025. On November 15, 

2024, Aspire provided a cost of $734,019 for the construction of the restroom building 
(see attached). This proposal from Aspire is reasonably consistent with the cost 
estimate provided by Bond for the restroom.  The attached plans show the proposed 

location of the restroom facility and  the interior layout of the restroom.  
 
Based upon a review of the estimate from Aspire, confirmation from Aspire that they 

can complete the restroom by the existing contract completion date, and the current 
progress with necessary permits, I believe it is viable to add construction of the 

restroom to this project. Accordingly, I recommend requesting City Council allocate an 
additional $805,000 for this project. This amount will allow Staff to process a contract 
change order with Aspire in the amount of $734,019 to add construction of restroom 

to the existing contract and a 10% contingency to allow for any unforeseen conditions 
and/or additional work as may be necessary to complete the project. If approved, this 

would result in a total contract amount with Aspire for the Amphitheater back-of-house 
improvements and restroom of $2,783,492 and a total City Council project 
authorization of $3,205,000.   

 
 
Attachments: Restroom Site Plan Exhibit 

   Restroom Plan Sheet 
Aerial of Amphitheater   

Restroom Pricing from Aspire Construction LLC 
   



B

B

E

B

B

B

B

B

2
-
1
0
"

3
-
4
"

B

B

E

DN

UP

1

1.2
1.3

1.5

1.8

1.92

2.5

3

B

A B.5 B.7 C D E FF.1 GB.1

4

5

6

H

K

7

J

Project No:

DATE:

222 SOUTH CENTRAL AVE. 

SUITE# 501 

ST. LOUIS,  MO 63105 

TEL:  314.863.4994 

FAX:  314.863.4996

www.bondarchitectsinc.com

Bond Architects, Inc.

Missouri State Certificate of Authority #

2009027409

The Professional Architects seal affixed to this sheet applies only to the 
material and items shown on this sheet.  All drawings, instruments or 

other documents not exhibiting this seal shall not be considered 
prepared by this architect, and this architect expressly disclaims any 

and all responsibility for such plan, drawings or documents not 
exhibiting this seal.

This drawing and the details on it are the sole property of the 
architect and may be used for this specific project only.  It shall not 
be loaned, copied or reproduced, in whole or in part, or for any other 

purpose or project without the written consent of the Architect.
Copyright  © 2024 by Bond Architects, Inc.

Cole & Associates, Inc. 

Civil Engineer
MO Certificate of Authority #001165
1520 S. Fifth Street, Suite 307
St. Charles, MO 63303
(636) 978.7508 tel

4
/1

/2
0

2
4
 1

2
:2

0
:1

0
 P

M

03/29/24

SITE PLAN

C
h
e
st

e
rf

ie
ld

 A
m

p
h
it

h
e
a
te

r

23053

A1.0

C
it
y
 o

f 
C

h
e
s
te

rf
ie

ld
6
9
0
 C

h
e
s
te

rf
ie

ld
 P

k
w

y
. 

W
.

C
h
e
s
te

rf
ie

ld
, 

M
O

 6
3
0
1
7

City of Chesterfield
Owner
690 Chesterfield Parkway West
Chesterfield, MO 63017

CASE Engineering
MEP/FP Engineer
MO Certificate of Athority #001498
796 Merus Court
St. Louis, MO 63026
(636) 349.1600 tel

SSE, Inc.
Structural Engineer
MO Certificate of Authority #000090
138 West Clinton Pl
St. Louis, MO
(314) 956.2233 tel

6
3

1
 V

e
te

ra
n
s
 P

l.
 D

r.
C

h
e

s
te

rf
ie

ld
, 

M
O

 6
3
0

1
7

Keynote Legend

Key Value Keynote Text

N

1" = 20'-0"A1.0

1 SITE PLAN

Revisions

No. Description Date

Zachary Wolff
Stamp

Anjana Kittu
Text Box
PROPOSED RESTROOM

Anjana Kittu
Text Box
PROPOSED BUILDING ADDITION

Anjana Kittu
Text Box
AMPHITHEATER STAGE

Anjana Kittu
Text Box
MAIN CIRCLE DRIVE

Zachary Wolff
Text Box
Existing Concessions and Restroom 

Zachary Wolff
Text Box
AmphitheaterStage

Zachary Wolff
Text Box
Proposed Restrrom

Zachary Wolff
Text Box
Proposed Back of House Building

Zachary Wolff
Text Box
NewBack-of-HouseBuilding

Zachary Wolff
Text Box
ProposedRestroom

Zachary Wolff
Text Box
ExistingContainer



1

PH2-A6.1

WOMEN'S
RESTROOM

203

MEN'S
RESTROOM

201

JANITOR

202

2

PH2-A8.1

2

PH2-A6.1

2
0

3

2
0

1

202

3

PH2-A8.1

1

PH2-A8.1

J2

J2

E9

E9

E5

FENCED UTILITY 
AREA

PH2-A9.4

1

PH2-A9.3

3

6
' -

 8
 1

/8
"

9
' -

 0
 3

/4
"

6
' -

 8
 1

/8
"

8' - 1 1/8"

1' - 2 1/8"

3' - 4"

3' - 7"

2
' -

 7
"

3
' -

 4
"

3
' -

 1
 3

/4
"

1' - 2 1/8"

3' - 4"

3' - 7"

PH2-A5.1

1

PH2-A5.1
2

PH2-A5.1

3

PH2-A5.1
4

PH2-A5.1

5

6 PH2-A10.1

6

5

4

PH2-A10.1

3

2

1

9
' -

 2
 3

/4
"

6
 5

/8
"

M
IN

. 
C
LR

1
' -

 2
"

6
 5

/8
"

9
' -

 2
 3

/4
"

7
' -

 8
"

4
 7

/8
"

4
' -

 7
 1

/8
"

4
 7

/8
"

7
' -

 8
"

5

6

H

K

36' - 2 3/8"

6' - 7 1/4"

2
1
' -

 4
 1

/8
"

1
0
' -

 9
 5

/8
"

2
2
' -

 5
"

STORAGE

204

43' - 10 3/4"

J

43' - 10 3/4"

204

8' - 1 1/8"

10 1/8"

6' - 0"

7 1/4"

17' - 6 1/8"

4 7/8"

9' - 7 1/8"

8' - 1 1/8"

10 1/8"

8
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

6
' -

 4
"

8
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

N
N

N
N

N

N

N
N

F

F

F

A

A

E

E

D

D

A

A

A

A

A

B

B

B

B

B

C

C

A

F

F

F

J6

J2

E
E

07.20

32.02

32.02

PH2-A9.4

1
Sim

4' - 8 1/2"

10 1/4"

2"

5' - 4 3/8"

10.07

10.08

10.07

22.03

22.03

PH2-A9.3

2

EXISTING CONCESSIONS BUILDING - NIC

2

PH2-A9.4

2

PH2-A9.4

Sim

559.79 F.F. ELEV.
SEE CIVIL

1
0
' -

 9
 5

/8
"

PH2-A9.4
4

PH2-A9.4
4

EXISTING STAGE CANOPY

POTENTIAL FUTURE NORTH CANOPY

EXISTING BACK STAGE BUILDING

DRESSING ROOM 
BUILDING

POTENTIAL 
FUTURE SOUTH 
CANOPY

EXISTING 
CONCESSIONS 
BUILDING - NIC

RESTROOM 
BUILDING

EXISTING 
CONCESSIONS 
CONTAINER - NIC

Project No:

DATE:

222 SOUTH CENTRAL AVE. 

SUITE# 501 

ST. LOUIS,  MO 63105 

TEL:  314.863.4994 

FAX:  314.863.4996

www.bondarchitectsinc.com

Bond Architects, Inc.

Missouri State Certificate of Authority #

2009027409

The Professional Architects seal affixed to this sheet applies only to the 
material and items shown on this sheet.  All drawings, instruments or 

other documents not exhibiting this seal shall not be considered 
prepared by this architect, and this architect expressly disclaims any 

and all responsibility for such plan, drawings or documents not 
exhibiting this seal.

This drawing and the details on it are the sole property of the 
architect and may be used for this specific project only.  It shall not 
be loaned, copied or reproduced, in whole or in part, or for any other 

purpose or project without the written consent of the Architect.
Copyright  © 2024 by Bond Architects, Inc.

Cole & Associates, Inc. 

Civil Engineer
MO Certificate of Authority #001165
1520 S. Fifth Street, Suite 307
St. Charles, MO 63303
(636) 978.7508 tel

C
h
e

s
te

rf
ie

ld
 A

m
p

h
it
h
e

a
te

r 
-

P
h
a

s
e

 2
 

R
e
s
tr

o
o

m
 B

u
ild

in
g

7
/1

/2
0

2
4
 3

:5
4
:1

1
 P

M

07/05/2024

FLOOR PLAN  -
PHASE 2

23053

PH2-A2.1

C
it
y
 o

f 
C

h
e
s
te

rf
ie

ld
6
9
0
 C

h
e
s
te

rf
ie

ld
 P

k
w

y
. 

W
.

C
h
e
s
te

rf
ie

ld
, 

M
O

 6
3
0
1
7

City of Chesterfield
Owner
690 Chesterfield Parkway West
Chesterfield, MO 63017

CASE Engineering
MEP/FP Engineer
MO Certificate of Athority #001498
796 Merus Court
St. Louis, MO 63026
(636) 349.1600 tel

SSE, Inc.
Structural Engineer
MO Certificate of Authority #000090
138 West Clinton Pl
St. Louis, MO
(314) 956.2233 tel

6
3

1
 V

e
te

ra
n
s
 P

l.
 D

r.
C

h
e

s
te

rf
ie

ld
, 

M
O

 6
3
0

1
7

KEYNOTE LEGEND

KEY VALUE KEYNOTE TEXT

07.20 PREFINISHED METAL DOWNSPOUT

10.07 TOILET PARTITION

10.08 URINAL SCREEN

22.03 DRINKING FOUNTAIN, PROVIDE BLOCKING AS REQUIRED, SEE PLUMBING
DRAWINGS

32.02 6’ WOOD PRIVACY FENCE & GATE. SEE DETAILS

N

1/4" = 1'-0"PH2-A2.1

2 ENLARGED RESTROOM BUILDING FLOOR PLAN

Revisions

No. Description Date

CPCI EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE

FINISH MARK PRODUCT TYPE
FINISH

MANUFACTURER STYLE

A TOILET TISSUE DISPENSER BRADLEY DIPLOMAT MODEL 5A10

B SANITARY NAPKIN DISPOSAL BRADLEY DIPLOMAT MODEL 4A10

C GRAB BAR BRADLEY 812 SERIES

D BABY CHANGING STATION BRADLEY MODEL 962-11

E HAND DRYER BRADLEY AERIX+  2923-287401

F SOAP DISPENSER BRADLEY DIPLOMAT MODEL 6A01-11

N MIRROR BRADLEY CHANNEL FRAME MODEL 781

X

N

NOT TO SCALE

KEY PLAN



Anjana Kittu
Callout
Existing Central Park Restroom~540' S of S Amphitheater Entrance

Zachary Wolff
Arrow

Zachary Wolff
Arrow



305 Parkway Industrial Drive, Lake Saint Louis, MO 63367 

 
ASPIRE CONSTRUCTION SERVICES LLC 

P: 636-493-1600 
C: 636-485-0373               W:  www.aspire-stl.com 

E: gkrueger@aspire-stl.com  
 
November 14th, 2024 
 

** ACS Proposal Chesterfield Amphitheater Restroom ** 
Aspire Construction Services proposes to furnish all labor, material, and supervision for the 
above referenced project per Bond Architects plans, site visit and qualifications listed below 
for the lump sum amount of: Seven Hundred Thirty-Four Thousand One Hundred 
Nineteen Dollars and No Cents ($734,019.00). 
 
Qualifications: 
 Concrete  

o Form and pour all foundation walls 
o Furnish and install rebar material 
o Form, pour and finish slab on grade 
o Form, pour, and finish concrete sidewalk 
o Haul off spoils 

 Earthwork 
o Clearing and Demolition of site and existing portion of sidewalk 
o Excavation and backfill 

 Flashing and Sheet Metal 
o Steel siding with associated flashing and insulation where required 
o TPO Roof 
o Shop fabricated coping and cleat in manufacturer’s color 
o Fabricated gutters and downspouts 

 Steel 
o Structural steel per plans 
o Steel Framing 

 Fencing 
o 10 lf of 6’ high, Pressure Treated Pine Wood Horizontal Fence 
o 2 6’ wide x 6’ high, Double Swing Gate with Three Gate Butt Hinges Per Lead and 

One Lockable handle 
 Finishes 

o Sherwin Williams Deco Flake Fluid Applied Floors 
o Painting and priming along with installation of SF-2 (Palladium) and WC-04 (Strata) 
o Scranton “hiny hiders partitions” toilet compartments, ceiling hung models no 

longer available 
o Drywall installation 

 Doors 



305 Parkway Industrial Drive, Lake Saint Louis, MO 63367 

o 3 HM-1 Doors 
o 1 pair type HM-2 Doors 
o Door hardware 

 Mechanical 
o Installation of self contained system, no power wiring, control wiring, or interlock 

wiring 
o HVAC system based on drawings dated 6-25-2024 
o One (1) Heat pump split system. 
o One (1) ERV 
o One (1) electric unit heater, provided by MC and installed by EC 
o Refrigerant piping and condensate piping. 
o Ductwork 

 Electrical 
o Install 8 gfci protected outlets, 3 weatherproof gfci outlets and 1 dedicated duplex 

outlet 
o Install power to WH-2, EUH-1, ERV-1 and HP-1 
o Install photo eye and time clock 
o Install light fixtures per reflected ceiling plans with wall switches and ceiling sensors 
o Install panel B and underground feeder, feeder to be fed from concession building 

to new bathroom panel B location 
o Bore 385' from concession building to new building location if pavers are not 

removed we will remove them , we need a 3'x3' are to turn the conduit up at the 
new restroom 

o GC to reinstall pavers when re installing other pavers 
o One 12" x 12" quazite box to be installed in middle of run where we make our turn 
o Wire one tstat, tstat provided by HVAC 

 Plumbing/Utilities 
o Plumbing system based on drawings dated 6/28/2024. 
o DWV piping to 5’ outside of building to be ran in Schedule 40 PVC. 
o Domestic water piping to 5’ outside of building to be ran in Copper TYP “L” Pro-

Press. 
o Point of use mixing valves at all fixtures requiring hot water in lieu of system mixing 

valve. 
o Non ASME expansion tank 

 
Exclusion: 
 No fire alarm included. 
 All work to be done during normal working hours. 
 No work to be done outside of above scope. 
 Permit Fees 
 All electrical to come from Concession Building, reduction in price by $3,000 if from 

Concession Container 
 

Aspire Construction Services LLC   ACCEPTED   
       BY: 
 
___________________________   ______________________________ 
Grant Krueger      11/14/24    DATE:  



Division 01 00 00 - General Requirements (Site Logistics) 20,360.00$                    
Division 02 00 00 - Existing Conditions (Demo) -$                                
Division 03 00 00 - Concrete 88,055.00$                    
Division 04 00 00- Masonry -$                                
Division 05 10 00 - Structural Metal Framing 13,397.62$                    
Division 05 30 00 - Structural Steel 18,640.00$                    
Division 05 40 00 - Cold-Formed Metal Framing (CFS Trusses) -$                                
Division 06 10 00 - Rough Carpentry (Wood Framing) 6,380.00$                      
Division 06 40 00 - Architectural Woodwork (Millwork) -$                                
Division 06 60 00 - Composite Fabrications (Solid Surface) -$                                
Division 07 21 00 - Thermal Insulation 4,444.00$                      
Division 07 27 00 - Air Barriers/Joint Sealants/EIFS 2,776.00$                      
Division 07 30 00 - Steep Slope Roofing (Asphalt Shingles) -$                                
Division 07 46 00 - Siding -$                                
Division 07 50 00 - Membrane Roofing -$                                
Division 07 60 00 - Flashing and Sheet Metal 105,883.00$                  
Division 08 10 00 - Doors and Frames 12,065.00$                    
Division 08 33 00 - Coiling Doors and Grilles -$                                
Division 08 40 00 - Entrances, Storefronts, and Curtain Walls -$                                
Division 08 50 00 - Windows -$                                
Division 09 21 16 - Gypsum Board Assemblies (Drywall) 9,793.06$                      
Division 09 23 00 - Gypsum Plastering (Taping) 5,002.00$                      
Division 09 51 00 - Acoustical Ceilings -$                                
Division 09 60 00 - Flooring -$                                
Division 09 66 00 - Terrazzo Flooring -$                                
Division 09 67 00 - Fluid-Applied Flooring (Epoxy) 13,487.00$                    
Division 09 80 00 - Acoustic Treatment -$                                
Division 09 90 00 - Painting and Coating 24,902.00$                    
Division 10 11 00 - Visual Display Units (Markerboards, Tack Boards, Etc.) -$                                
Division 10 14 00 - Signage 300.00$                          
Division 10 21 00 - Compartments and Cubicles (Toilet Partitions) 12,657.05$                    
Division 10 26 13 - Corner Guards/Fire Extinguisher Cabinets 1,000.00$                      
Division 10 28 00 - Toilet, Bath, and Laundry Accessories 9,756.99$                      
Division 10 51 00 - Lockers -$                                
Division 10 71 00 - Exterior Protection (Window Shades) -$                                
Division 10 75 00 - Flagpoles -$                                
Division 21 00 00 - Fire Suppression -$                                
Division 22 00 00 - Plumbing 95,900.00$                    
Division 23 00 00 - HVAC 84,989.00$                    
Division 26 00 00 - Electrical 42,640.00$                    
Division 27 00 00 - Communications -$                                
Division 31 00 00 - Earthwork 24,085.00$                    
Division 32 12 16 - Asphalt Paving -$                                
Division 32 31 00 - Fences and Gates 9,000.00$                      
Division 32 32 00 - Retaining Walls -$                                
Division 32 18 13 - Synthetic Grass Surfacing 2,780.00$                      
Division 32 90 00 - Planting -$                                
Division 33 00 00 - Utilities 43,510.00$                    

SUBTOTAL 651,802.71$                  -$                                   
Overhead 15,643.27$                    

General Conditions 15,240.00$                    
Subtotal 682,685.98$                  

MSD Permit 1,365.37$                      
Building Permit 6,826.86$                      

Builder's Risk Insurance -$                                
General Liability Insurance 6,826.86$                      

Subtotal 697,705.07$                  
Bond 6,977.05$                      

Fee 29,336.44$                    -$                                   
Total 734,018.56$                  -$                                   

Alternate #1:Description Subtotal



Memorandum  
Department of Planning  
 

To:  Michael O. Geisel, City Administrator 

 
From: Justin Wyse, Director of Planning  
 

Date:  October 7, 2024 
 
RE:  Special Business District – An ordinance to establish the Downtown 

Chesterfield Special Business District and authorizing an election related 
thereto. 

 
 
Summary 

TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC has submitted a petition to establish 
a Special Business District (SBD) in accordance with the requirements of the approved 

Development Agreement between the City of Chesterfield and Downtown Chesterfield 
Redevelopment, LLC. City Council previously approved a Resolution of Intent after 
receiving a petition to establish the district. In accordance with the Revised Statutes of 

the State of Missouri, a public hearing will be held and ultimately an ordinance 
considered by the City of Chesterfield to establish the district. If approved, the City 
Clerk will coordinate to conduct a main in elevation which would authorize a levy on 

the subject site to pay for additional services not currently provided on the site. The 
petition includes public maintenance under the SBD of the following items:  

 
A. Maintenance, repair, and replacement of streets, street lighting, bike paths, 

and pedestrian pathways; 

B. Maintenance, repair, and replacement of landscaped center medians within 
City accepted streets, including irrigation (to the extent they are separable 

from systems serving other areas not to be maintained by the City); 

C. Security; 

D. Maintenance, repair and replacement of the public parking garage; 

E. Maintenance, repair and replacement of the public park including 
programming for marketing and events; 

F. Legal, insurance, administration, and financial oversight; and 

G. All other qualified and allowable expenditures of any other special district 
located within the City, established in accordance with the Special District 

Act. 
 

Additionally, a Survey and Investigation Report is required and provided. This report 
summarizes the services currently provided by the City of Chesterfield as well as the 



Downtown Chesterfield – Special Business District City Council Memo 

   September 17, 2024 

2 | P a g e  

 

future costs anticipated with the development of the site. As the report demonstrates, 
significant impacts are anticipated to current City services and the SBD provides a 

method to fund these improvements without diverting funds from existing obligation 
of services.  
 

 

 
Attachments:  

1) SBD Ordinance 

2) Survey and Investigation Report 



 

 

BILL NO. _______             ORDINANCE NO. _______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI 
ESTABLISHING THE DOWNTOWN CHESTERFIELD SPECIAL 
BUSINESS DISTRICT; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS IN 
CONNECTION THEREWITH; AUTHORIZING CERTAIN ACTIONS 
BY CITY OFFICIALS AND OFFICERS; AND CONTAINING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Chesterfield, Missouri (the “City”), is a political 

subdivision duly organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the 
State of Missouri, and 

 
WHEREAS, upon petition by one or more owners of real property on 

which is paid the ad valorem real property taxes within a proposed special 
business district, the governing body of the City may adopt a resolution of 
intention to establish a special business district pursuant to the Special 
Business Districts Act, Sections 71.790 to 71.808 of the Revised Statutes of 
Missouri, as amended (the “SBD Act”), and 

 
WHEREAS, the City received a Petition to Establish the Downtown 

Chesterfield Special Business District (the “Petition”), filed by an owner of real 
property subject to real property taxes within the proposed boundaries of the 
Downtown Chesterfield Special Business District (the “District”), which Petition 
is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 1, and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 71.794.(1) of the SBD Act, on                            

September 3, 2024, the City’s City Council (the “Council”) adopted                       
Resolution No. 501, as the resolution of intention to establish the District, in 
accordance with the SBD Act (the “Original Intent Resolution”); then, on 
September 17, 2024 the Council adopted an amended Resolution No. 501, 
which amended the Original Intent Resolution by changing the date and time of 
the public hearing resolved in the Original Intent Resolution, and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 71.794 of the SBD Act, the Council held 
a public hearing to consider the establishment of the District on                        
Monday, October 7, 2024 at 6:45 p.m. at Chesterfield City Hall, 690 
Chesterfield Parkway West, Chesterfield, Missouri  63017 (the “Public 
Hearing”), and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 71.794 of the SBD Act, the Council 

caused notice of the Public Hearing to be published on two separate occasions 
in a newspaper of general circulation not more than fifteen days nor less than 
ten days before the Public Hearing, and 

 

3524



 

- 2 - 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the SBD Act, the Council caused to be mailed a 
notice by United States certified mail, return-receipt requested of the Public 
Hearing to all owners of record of real property and licensed businesses located 
in the proposed District, and 

 
WHEREAS, at the Public Hearing the Council heard all protests and 

received all evidence for or against the proposed action, all in accordance with 
the SBD Act, and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 71.792 of the SBD Act, the Council 

conducted a survey and investigation for the purposes of determining the 
nature of and suitable location for the District improvements, the approximate 
cost of acquiring and improving the land therefor, the area to be included in 
the District, the need for and cost of special services, and cooperative 
promotion activities, and the percentage of the cost of acquisition, special 
services, and improvements in the District which are to be assessed against the 
property within the District and that part of the cost, if any, to be paid by 
public funds, and 

 
WHEREAS, a written report of the survey and investigation was filed in 

the Office of the City Clerk of the City of Chesterfield, Missouri, and was made 
available for public inspection (the “Report”), which Report is attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 2, and 

 
WHEREAS, the cost of the Report is included as a part of the cost of 

establishing the District, in accordance with the SBD Act, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Council seeks to establish the District in accordance 

with the SBD Act. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Upon review of the Report and the Petition the Council finds 
that the establishment of the District is in the best interest of the City and that 
the property owners, businesses, and tenants in said District and the public in 
general will benefit from the establishment of said District and the increased 
level of services and improvements provided by the proposed additional tax 
revenues from said District.  Therefore, pursuant to the SBD Act, the 
Downtown Chesterfield Special Business District is hereby established, and 
will continue to exist and function until dissolved by an ordinance of the 
Council.  The District shall include the real property depicted in the Petition, 
and as legally described on Exhibit 3, attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by reference. 

 



 

- 3 - 
 

Section 2. Pursuant to Section 71.800.5 of the SBD Act, the Council 
hereby orders an election on the approval of a tax on owners of real property in 
the District in a sum not to exceed $0.85 per $100 assessed valuation on real 
property, tracts, lots, or parcels of real property in the District for the purpose 
of providing revenue to the District (the “Proposition”).  Ballots on the 
Proposition shall be mailed by or on behalf of the City Clerk by March 4, 2025, 
with the election on the Proposition to occur on April 15, 2025.  The 
procedures for the application of a ballot on the Proposition and the related 
election shall be governed by the SBD Act.   

Section 3. Subject to the approval of the Proposition in accordance with 
the SBD Act and this Ordinance, the property in the District shall be subject to 
the provisions of the additional tax described in Section 2 of this Ordinance, 
which additional tax will have an initial rate of levy to be imposed upon the 
property lying within the boundaries of the District of $0.85 per $100 assessed 
valuation on real property, tracts, lots, or parcels of real property in the 
District.  Subject to the approval of the Proposition in accordance with the       
SBD Act and this Ordinance, the additional revenue generated by the 
additional tax will be put to the uses described in the Petition and in 
accordance with the SBD Act. 

Section 4. The Downtown Chesterfield Special Business District 
Advisory Board (the “Board”) is hereby created by this Ordinance, and as set 
forth below. 

(a) The Mayor of the City, with the consent of the Council, will appoint 
the seven-member Board, which Board will make recommendations 
as to the uses of the District to the Council.  Appointments to the 
Board will be made via a resolution of the Council, except for the 
initial appointments to the Board, which are set forth in this 
Ordinance.   

(b) Members of the Board must be at least 18 years of age. 

(c) Two of the seven members of the Board will be designees of TSG 
Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC, a Missouri limited 
liability company, or its permitted successors or assigns in interest, 
as agreed to by the City. Five of the seven members of the Board will 
be designees of the City. 

(d) Each member of the Board will serve for a four-year term (except as 
provided herein with respect to the initial members), with terms 
expiring as of December 31st of the designated year or when their 
successors are appointed as provided herein, whichever is later.  The 
initial members will be appointed for the terms set forth as follows:  
(a) one member will be appointed for a term expiring                 



 

- 4 - 
 

December 31, 2025; (b) two members will be appointed for a term 
expiring December 31, 2026; (c) two members will be appointed for a 
term expiring December 31, 2027; and (d) two members will be 
appointed for a term expiring December 31, 2028. 

(e) The Mayor, with consent of the Council, may remove any member of 
the Board for misconduct or neglect of duty upon written charges and 
after a public hearing. 

(f) Vacancies on the Board occasioned by removal, resignation, 
expiration of term, or otherwise will be reported in writing to the City 
Administrator of the City by the Board. The vacancy will be filled in 
like manner as an original appointment, except that it will be done via 
a resolution of the Council. Appointments to fill vacancies will be for 
the unexpired portion of a term only. 

(g) The Council hereby authorizes and approves the Board to exercise 
those powers and fulfill such duties as are required or authorized for 
such Board under the SBD Act.  The City shall exercise all 
administrative functions of the Board.  

(h) The Board shall, within thirty days of notice that the Proposition 
passed at an election held in accordance with the SBD Act, fix a time 
and place for its annual meeting.  At each annual meeting, the Board 
shall adopt and then file with the Council a proposed annual budget 
for the District, which shall set forth the projected revenues and 
expenditures for the ensuing year; provided, however, that such 
proposal annual budget for the District is only a recommendation to 
the Council, and is not the final budget of the District unless 
approved by the Council.  

 
Section 5. The Mayor hereby appoints and the Council hereby consents 

to the appointment of the below-listed individuals to the District’s initial Board. 

Name Initial Term 
Expiration Date 

City’s Chief of Police, currently, Cheryl Funkhouser December 31, 2025 

City’s Finance Director, currently, Jeannette Kelly December 31, 2026 

City’s Director of Planning, currently, Justin Wyse December 31, 2026 

City’s Director of Public Works, currently, James Eckrich December 31, 2027 

City’s Director of Parks, currently, Mike Geisel December 31, 2027 



 

- 5 - 
 

Michael H. Staenberg December 31, 2028 

Timothy S. Lowe December 31, 2028 
 

Section 6. Pursuant to the SBD Act, the Council shall have all the 
powers necessary to carry out any and all improvements relating to the District 
described in this Ordinance and the Petition, and as further described in 
Section 71.796 of the SBD Act. 

 
Section 7. Pursuant to Section 71.808 of the SBD Act, the findings of 

the Council of the benefits to be derived by the District, as set out in this 
Ordinance and the Petition, shall be conclusive.  

 
Section 8. The WHEREAS clauses of this Ordinance are hereby 

incorporated herein by reference. 

Section 9. The Mayor of the City or his designated representatives are 
hereby authorized to take any and all actions as may be necessary and 
appropriate in order to carry out the matters herein authorized, with no such 
further action of the Council being necessary to authorize such action by the 
Mayor or his designated representatives.   
 

Section 10. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Council that 
each and every part, section, and subsection of this Ordinance shall be 
separate and severable from each and every other party, section, and 
subsection hereof and that the Council intends to adopt each said part, 
section, and subsection separately and independently of any other part, 
section, and subsection.  In the event that any part, section, or subsection of 
this Ordinance shall be determined to be or to have been unlawful or 
unconstitutional, the remaining parts, sections, and subsections shall be and 
remain in full force and effect, unless the court making such finding shall 
determine that the valid portions standing alone are incomplete and are 
incapable of being executed in accordance with the legislative intent.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

- 6 - 
 

Section 11. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and 
after its passage and approval.  
 

Passed and approved this _______ day of ____________________, 202__. 
 
 

   
________________________________                        _____________________________ 
 PRESIDING OFFICER          Bob Nation, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Vickie McGownd, CITY CLERK 
 

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.] 

 
FIRST READING HELD: 10/7/2024 


	2024-12-02 Paragraphs
	2024-10-07 Dwntwn SBD
	2024 Amphitheater Restroom
	2024-11-19 2023PW15 RR Recommendation Memo
	2024-08-30 2023PW15 Restroom Siteplan Exhibit
	Sheets
	A1.0 - SITE PLAN


	2024-11-15 RR Floor Plan and Exisiting Restroom
	2024-08-29 2023PW15 Restroom Addition Exhibit
	2024-08-29 2023PW15 Aerial Exhibit

	2024-11-15 Proposal Chesterfield RR
	2024-11-15 Aspire RR Estimate


	2024 Wilson Avenue Right of Way Parcel 9
	THE LUMIERE
	2024-11-18 City Council Minutes
	2024-11-18 Budget Public Hearing Minutes
	2024-11-18 PZ 08 CC Packet
	2024-11-18 Public Street Acceptance
	2024-12-02 CVM SDCP CC Packet
	2024-10-28- PC VII.B Part 2

	Bill No     Appointing City Attorney
	ord3122


